
 

 

  

 
Meeting: Extraordinary Council 

Date: Thursday 25th January 2024 

Time: 6:00 pm 

Venue: Council Chamber, The Cube, George Street, Corby NN17 1QG 

 
The meeting will be available for the public to view live at our Democratic 
Services’ YouTube channel: 
https://www.youtube.com/@NNCDemServices 

 
Council Membership: 
Councillor Barbara Jenney (Chair),Councillor Lora Lawman (Vice-Chair),Councillor Jean 
Addison, Councillor Tim Allebone, Councillor Valerie Anslow, Councillor Ross Armour, 
Councillor Charlie Best, Councillor Paul Bell, Councillor Matt Binley, Councillor Jennie 
Bone, Councillor David Brackenbury, Councillor Wendy Brackenbury, Councillor Cedwien 
Brown, Councillor Scott Brown, Councillor Leanne Buckingham, Councillor Lyn 
Buckingham, Councillor Lloyd Bunday, Councillor Jon-Paul Carr, Councillor Robin Carter, 
Cllr Melanie Coleman, Councillor William Colquhoun, Councillor John Currall, Councillor 
Alison Dalziel, Councillor Mark Dearing, Councillor Dez Dell, Councillor Scott Edwards, 
Councillor Jonathan Ekins, Councillor Emily Fedorowycz, Councillor Martin Griffiths, 
Councillor Jim Hakewill, Councillor Clive Hallam, Councillor Ken Harrington, Councillor 
Helen Harrison, Councillor Kirk Harrison, Councillor Larry Henson, Councillor Helen 
Howell, Councillor David Howes, Councillor Philip Irwin, Councillor Bert Jackson, Councillor 
Ian Jelley, Councillor Matt Keane, Councillor King Lawal, Councillor Graham Lawman, 
Councillor Anne Lee, Councillor Richard Levell, Councillor Paul Marks, Councillor Dorothy 
Maxwell, Councillor Peter McEwan, Councillor John McGhee, Councillor Zoe McGhee, 
Councillor Andy Mercer, Councillor Gill Mercer, Councillor Macaulay Nichol, Councillor 
Steven North, Councillor Jan O'Hara, Councillor Dr Anup Pandey, Councillor Tom 
Partridge-Underwood, Councillor Mark Pengelly, Councillor Harriet Pentland, Councillor 
Roger Powell, Councillor Elliot Keith Prentice, Councillor Simon Rielly, Councillor Russell 
Roberts, Councillor Mark Rowley, Councillor Geoff Shacklock, Councillor David Sims, 
Councillor Jason Smithers, Councillor Chris Smith-Haynes, Councillor Joseph John Smyth, 
Councillor Sarah Tubbs, Councillor Michael Tye, Councillor Malcolm Ward, Councillor 
Malcolm Waters, Councillor Kevin Watt, Councillor Keli Watts, Councillor Andrew 
Weatherill and Councillor Lee Wilkes.  
 
Members of The Council are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business listed on the agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/@NNCDemServices


 

Agenda 

Item Subject Page no. 

01  Apologies 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

02 Declarations of Interest 
 
Members to declare any interest as appropriate in respect of items 
to be considered at the meeting. 
 

 

 Items requiring a decision 
03 Monitoring Officer Designation – Interim appointment and 

Interim arrangements to cover Executive Director of Customer 
and Governance Duties 

To seek Council approval to appoint an interim Monitoring Officer; 
and to note the proposed interim arrangements for the remaining 
duties of the Executive Director of Customer and Governance role.  
  

5 - 10 

04 Proposed Revisions to the Constitution –  
Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference 
 
To update Council on proposed revisions to the Terms of 
Reference for the Audit and Governance Committee.  
 

11 - 20 

05 Local Government Association – Civility in public life - Debate 
Not Hate Campaign 
 
To update and inform Council of the Local Government 
Association’s “Debate Not Hate: The Impact of Abuse on Local 
Democracy” report (the Report) and campaign.  
 

21 - 64 

06 Request for Dispensation for Attendance  
 
To advise Councillors of a request for a dispensation to a Councillor 
 

65 - 68 

                                                 Urgent Items 
 To consider any items of business of which notice has been given to the Proper 

Officer and the Chair considers to be urgent, pursuant to the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

07 Close of Meeting 
  

Page 2



 

 
 
This agenda has been published by Democratic Services. 
 01832 742113  ben.smith@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Members’ Declarations of Interest 
 
Members are reminded of their duty to ensure they abide by the approved Member Code 
of Conduct whilst undertaking their role as a Councillor. Where a matter arises at a 
meeting which relates to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, you must declare the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless granted a dispensation.   
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to other Registerable Interests, you 
must declare the interest.  You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are 
also allowed to speak at the meeting but must not take part in any vote on the matter 
unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
Where a matter arises at a meeting which relates to your own financial interest (and is not 
a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest) or relates to a financial interest of a relative, friend or 
close associate, you must disclose the interest and not vote on the matter unless granted 
a dispensation. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting.   
 
Members are reminded that they should continue to adhere to the Council’s approved 
rules and protocols during the conduct of meetings. These are contained in the Council’s 
approved Constitution. 
 
If Members have any queries as to whether a Declaration of Interest should be made 
please contact the Monitoring Officer at – monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
Press & Media Enquiries 
 
Any press or media enquiries should be directed through Council’s Communications Team 
to communications@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Public Access and Enquiries 
 
The public are welcome to attend the Council’s meetings in person using the Council’s 
public gallery. Public enquiries regarding the Council’s meetings can be made to 
democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Webcasting 
 
Meetings of the Council will be filmed by the Council for live and/or subsequent broadcast 
on the Council’s website. The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are 

 Adele Wylie, Monitoring Officer 
North Northamptonshire Council 

 
Proper Officer 

Wednesday 17th January 2024 

Page 3

mailto:monitoringofficer@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:communications@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


 

confidential or exempt items. A copy will be retained in accordance with the Council’s data 
retention policy. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting, unless you have specifically asked not to 
appear on the webcast, you are taking positive action to confirm that you consent to being 
filmed. You have been made aware of the broadcast and entering the Council Chamber 
you are consenting to be filmed by North Northamptonshire Council and to the possible 
use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting. 
 
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the public gallery area 
that overlooks the Chamber. 
 
The Council is obliged by law to allow members of the public to take photographs, film, 
audio-record, blog or tweet the proceedings at public meetings. The Council will only seek 
to prevent this should it be undertaken in a disruptive or otherwise inappropriate manner. 
 
The Council intends to webcast all of its public meetings held at the Corby Cube, but if it is 
unable to do so, for the avoidance of doubt, the meeting will continue as scheduled and 
decisions and minutes made available on the Council’s website in the normal manner. 
 
If you have any queries regarding webcasting or the recording of meetings by the public, 
please contact democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
 

 
 

 

Page 4

mailto:democraticservices@northnorthants.gov.uk


1 
 

 
 

Full Council 
25th January 2024 

 

 
 

 
List of Appendices 
 
None. 
 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the agreement of Council to appoint Sanjit 

Sull, as the Council’s Interim Monitoring Officer; and note the proposed interim 
arrangements for the remaining duties of the Executive Director of Customer 
and Governance role. 

 
2 Executive Summary 
 
2.1 Following the appointment of Adele Wylie as Chief Executive and Head of 

Paid Service, Council needs to designate the role of Monitoring Officer under 
Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 
2.2 This report details the proposed interim arrangements to ensure that the 

Council complies with its statutory and legal obligations.   
 

 
 

Report Title 
 

Appointment of Interim Monitoring Officer  

Report Author Adele Wylie – Executive Director of Customer and 
Governance  
adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk 
 
 

Are there public sector equality duty implications?  ☐ Yes    ☒ No 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)? 

☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Applicable paragraph number/s for exemption from 
publication under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 

Which Corporate Plan priority does the report most closely 
align with? Our priorities for the future | North Northamptonshire 
Council (northnorthants.gov.uk)  

Modern public 
services 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

mailto:adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/corporate-plan/our-priorities-future
https://www.northnorthants.gov.uk/corporate-plan/our-priorities-future


2 
 

3 Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Council: 

 
a) Appoints Sanjit Sull as Interim Monitoring Officer with effect from 27th 

January 2024, pending the permanent appointment to the role. 
 
Reasons for Recommendations 

 
3.2 It is a requirement in law that the Council has a designated Monitoring Officer 

and the recommendations within this report ensure that the Council continues 
to comply with its statutory and legal obligations.   

 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
3.3 Under the Local Government & Housing Act 1988, Section 5, authorities are 

required to appoint one of its officers as its Monitoring Officer, to ensure legal 
and fair decision making; promote and maintain high standards of conduct; 
report any instances of maladministration; and review the Council’s 
Constitution.   
 

3.4 The Council could decide to appoint a suitably qualified interim/consultant to 
fulfil the Monitoring Officer role and cover the duties of the Executive Director 
of Customer and Governance, however, the recommended option will ensure 
stability, continuity and will be the most cost-effective solution. 

 
 
4 Report Background 
 
4.1 Adele Wylie, the current Executive Director of Customer and Governance and 

Monitoring Officer will take up her new role as the Chief Executive and Head 
of Paid service on 27th January 2024.  
 

4.2 Adele was appointed as Monitoring Officer in 2020 by the Shadow Authority 
and has been designated in this role since then. To ensure that the Council is 
legally compliant, it is necessary to appoint a Monitoring Officer on an interim 
basis, pending a permanent appointment.   

 
4.3 It is a legislative requirement under Section 5 of the Local Government & 

Housing Act 1988, for the Council to appoint a Monitoring Officer. There a 
restriction on the Monitoring Officer being the Head of Paid Service or the 
Chief Finance Officer to ensure good governance. 

 
4.4 The Monitoring Officer has three main roles: 
 
4.4.1 to report on matters he or she believes are, or are likely to be, illegal or 

amount to maladministration; 
4.4.2 to be responsible for matters relating to the conduct of councillors and officers; 

and 
4.4.3 to be responsible for the operation of the Council’s Constitution. 

 

Page 6



3 
 

 
5  Issues and Choices 
 
5,1 The Council could choose to cover the statutory designation with an internal 

officer or alternatively it could procure the services of an external consultant. 
 
5.2      The Constitution provides that the designation of Monitoring Officer is a matter 

reserved to Council and therefore formal approval of the interim appointment 
must be determined by Council.  

 
5.3  Sanjit Sull is currently the Assistant Director of Legal and Democratic and 

appointed Deputy Monitoring Officer. Sanjit is an experienced lawyer and was 
the Monitoring Officer at her previous authority. Sanjit has undertaken a 
number of LGA Peer Reviews throughout the country as the governance lead 
and therefore brings a wealth of experience and expertise to the Council. She 
has been supporting the Monitoring Officer since June 2022. 

 
5.4 Considering the experience that already exists in house and the benefits that 

will come from having an internal officer who already understands the 
organisations context and matters that are ongoing, it is recommended that 
the Council appoint Sanjit Sull on an interim basis as Monitoring Officer. This 
will ensure continuity and stability and is the most cost-effective option.  

 
5.5 The Monitoring Officer will report into the Chief Executive and will be a 

member of the Corporate Leadership Team.  
 
5.6 If approved, an additional responsibility allowance of £16,622 will be paid to 

the Assistant Director of Legal & Democratic in respect of undertaking the 
Monitoring Officer duties and the temporarily line management of additional 
services comprising of Registrations (including proper officer designation), 
Senior Information Risk Owner and Electoral Services. The additional payment 
is commensurate with the NNC Corporate Director salary range detailed in the 
Council’s agreed pay policy, £109,672. 

 
5.7 The incoming Chief Executive has determined that the Executive Director of 

Customer and Governance role will not be recruited to whilst a review of the 
senior structure is considered. The leadership of services within the Customer 
and Governance directorate will be undertaken on an interim basis by the 
Assistant Chief Executive and the Monitoring Officer (as outlined above). 
Customer Services and Human Resources will fall under the Assistant Chief 
Executive. 

 
 
6 Next Steps  
6.1 If approved the interim arrangements will be implemented. 
 
7 Implications (including financial implications)   
 
7.1 Resources and Financial  
 

Page 7



4 
 

7.1.1  The costs of the interim arrangements will be met from the existing budget for 
the Executive Director Customer and Governance post. 

 
7.2  Legal and Governance  
 
7.2.1  The Council must ensure that the appointment of statutory roles is managed in 

accordance with the Constitution. The recommendations proposed in this 
report will ensure that the correct process is followed.   

 
7.2.3  The appointment of the Monitoring Officer, as a statutory role is reserved to 

Council.  
 
7.3  Relevant Policies and Plans  
 
7.3.1  The post of Monitoring Officer is key to the Council delivering its corporate and 

objectives and ensuring legal compliance. 
 
7.4  Risk  
 
7.4.1  This interim appointment mitigates the risk of the authority being without a 

Monitoring Officer and legal cover. As a qualified lawyer, the Assistant Director 
of Legal & Democratic is considered to be the most suitable internal candidate 
to fulfil the interim Monitoring Officer appointment.  

 
7.4.2  There are no further risks to consider arising from the proposed 

recommendations in this report.  
 
7.5  Consultation  
 
7.5.1  None required. 
 
7.6  Consideration by Executive Advisory Panel 

 
7.6.1 Not applicable 

 
7.7 Consideration by Scrutiny 
 
7.7.1 Not applicable  
 
7.8 Equality Implications 
 
7.8.1 A fair and transparent process has been completed, in accordance with the 

Council’s values and behaviours and diversity and inclusion policies. 
 
7.9 Climate Impact 
 
7.9.1 Not applicable. 
 
7.10 Community Impact 
 
7.10.1 Not applicable 
 

Page 8



5 
 

7.11 Crime and Disorder Impact 
 
7.11.1 Not applicable 
 
 
8  Background Papers  
 
8.1 Constitution of North Northamptonshire Council (link to website) 
 
 

Page 9

https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=198&MId=1773&Ver=4&Info=1


This page is intentionally left blank



                                    
 
 
 
 

Full Council  
25th January 2024 

 

 
 
Are there public sector equality duty implications?  ☐ Yes    x No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)? 

☐ Yes    x No 

Applicable paragraph number/s for exemption from 
publication under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

N/A 

 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A - Proposed revisions to the Audit and Governance Committee Terms of 

Reference. 
 
Appendix B - Table of changes.   
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. To update on proposed revisions to the Terms of Reference for the Audit and 

Governance Committee. 
 
 
2. Executive Summary 
 
2.1 The Terms of Reference for the Audit and Governance Committee have been 

in place since vesting day in April 2021.  
 

Report Title 
 

Proposed Revisions to the Constitution –  
Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference 
 

Report Authors Adele Wylie, Executive Director of Customer and 
Governance/Monitoring Officer 
Adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Kamila Coulson-Patel, Chief Lawyer   
Kamila.Coulson-Patel@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Kamila.Coulson-Patel@northnorthants.gov.uk


2.2 As part of a routine review, the Monitoring Officer has been made aware of 
required updates to reflect the current CIFPA guidance and local arrangements.  
 

2.3 On 8 January 2024 the Democracy and Standards Committee considered the 
proposed revisions to the Audit and Governance Terms of Reference following 
consideration by the Constitutional Working Group on 18 December 2023.  
 

2.4 The Democracy and Standards Committee recommended the approval by Full 
Council of the proposed revisions to the Terms of Reference for the Audit and 
Governance Committee.  

 
 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is recommended that Full Council:  

 
a) approves of the revised Terms of Reference for the Audit and Governance 

Committee.  
 

3.2 Reason for Recommendation – The proposed changes are recommended to 
ensure the Audit and Governance Committee can effectively discharge its 
functions in compliance with professional standards and reflects local 
arrangements.  

 
3.3 Alternative Options Considered - The option of presenting the revisions as 

part of the programmed review at a later date was rejected as this would 
disrupt the delivery of the work of the Audit and Governance Committee.  

 
 
4. Proposed Revisions to the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee  
 
4.1 As part of a routine review of the Audit and Governance Committee Terms of 

Reference a number of amendments have been identified.  
 

4.2 The amendments proposed largely remove duplication and ensure 
compliance with the CIPFA Position Statement 2022. The Chief Internal 
Auditor has reviewed the Terms of Reference in consultation with the 
Monitoring Officer.  
 

4.3 Whilst the proposed amendments do not deviate from the national standards 
of the CIPFA guidance, the proposed changes do result in a change in the 
Terms of Reference for the Audit and Governance Committee. This includes a 
change in the scope of the work of the Committee and as such requires 
approval by full Council before any changes can be made. The proposed 
revision is shown at Appendix A with the changes shown in red. A simple 
table is shown at Appendix B detailing the change to be made.  
 

Page 12



4.4 It is considered the proposed changes are urgent in nature to facilitate the 
work of the Audit and Governance Committee whilst ensuring compliance with 
professional standards, namely the CIPFA Position Statement 2022.  

 
4.5 Future review of the terms of reference for the Audit and Governance 

Committee will form part of the annual review of the Constitution programmed 
for 2024/25. 
 

4.6 The recommendations are detailed at paragraph three above. The option of 
presenting the revisions as part of the programmed review due to take place 
in 2024/25 was considered and rejected.  
 

4.7 The work of the Audit and Governance Committee should align with the 
current CIPFA guidance including the position statement and local 
arrangements to ensure the Committee can effectively discharge its function 
and responsibility within the sphere of Audit and Governance. 
 
 

5. Next Steps 
 

5.1 Council is recommended to approve the proposed updates to the Terms of 
Reference for the Audit and Governance Committee. If the proposed changes 
are approved, the Constitution will be updated to reflect the changes and will 
take effect immediately.  
 
 

6. Implications (including financial implications)  
 

6.1 Resources and Financial 
 

6.1.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
6.2 Legal and Governance 

 
6.2.1 It is necessary update the Terms of Reference to ensure compliance with 

CIPFA guidance, as a failure to maintain and update these places the 
decision making of the Committee and Council at risk of legal challenge.  

 
6.3 Relevant Policies and Plans 

 
6.3.1 The Constitution includes the Terms of Reference for the Audit and 

Governance Committee. The proposed revisions if approved would result in 
the updating of the Terms of Reference to this Committee.  
 

  

Page 13



6.4 Risk  
 

6.4.1 The proposed amendments are intended to ensure compliance with up to 
date CIFPA Position Statement and reflect local arrangements.  
 

6.5 Consultation  
 

6.5.1 The Constitution Working Group were consulted on the proposed revisions on 
18 December 2023. 

 
6.6 Equality Implications 

 
6.6.1 There have been no equality implications identified in producing this report. 

 
6.7 Climate Impact 

 
6.7.1 None. 

 
6.8 Community Impact 

 
6.8.1 None.  

 
6.9 Crime and Disorder Impact 

 
6.9.1 None. 

 
7. Background Papers 

 
7.1 Constitution - North Northamptonshire Council 

 
7.2 Proposed Revisions to the Constitution - Report to Democracy and Standards 

Committee on 8th January, 2024 

Page 14

https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=198&MId=1773&Ver=4&Info=1
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=1867
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=1867


Audit and Governance Committee  
 
 
 
5.1. Audit Activity  
 
a) To approve the Council’s Internal Audit Charter setting out the Internal 
Audit Strategy and Terms of Reference.  
 
b) To approve, but not direct, Internal Audit’s annual plan of work and monitor 
unscheduled work that could potentially divert audit resources away from a 
plan, and monitor performance against those plans, ensuring that there is no 
inappropriate scope or resource limitations.  
 
c) To consider the Annual Report and opinion of the Head of Audit and a 
summary of internal audit activity and the level of assurance it can give over 
the Council’s corporate governance arrangements  
 
d) To consider summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising and 
seek assurance that action has been taken where necessary.  
 
e) To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the 
Internal Audit function.  
 
f) To consider reports from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 
implemented within reasonable timescales.  
 
g) To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Inspection Letter, relevant 
reports and the reports of those charged with governance.  
 
h) To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor to ensure 
agreed action is taken within reasonable timescales.  
 
i) To comment on the scope and depth of the external audit work and to 
ensure it gives value for money.  
 
j) To liaise with the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd over the 
appointment of the Council’s external auditor.  
 
k) To consider the reports of inspection agencies relevant to the Council.  
 
l) To suggest work for Internal and External Audit. 
 
m) To undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit.  
 
m) To oversee Internal Audit’s independence, objectivity, performance and 
conformance to professional standards. 
 

Page 15

Appendix A



n) To promote the effective use of Internal Audit within the assurance 
framework.  
 
o) To consider the opinion, reports and recommendations of external audit 
and inspection agencies and their implications for governance, risk 
management or control, and monitor management action in response to the 
issues raised by external audit.  
 
p) To contribute to the operation of efficient and effective external audit 
arrangements, supporting the independence of auditors and promoting audit 
quality.  
 
q) To support effective relationships between all providers of assurance, 
audits and inspections, and the organisation, encouraging openness to 
challenge, review and accountability. 
 
r) To oversee the assessment of the governance and performance of 
significant partnerships.  
 
 
5.2.Regulatory Framework  
 
a) To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive or Corporate 
Director or any Committee of the Council.  
 
b) To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management 
and corporate governance throughout the Council.  
 
c) To monitor and approve council policies on “raising concerns at work”,and 
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policies including the Council’s complaints 
process and Whistleblowing policy process.  
 
d) To oversee the production of the Council’s Statement of Internal 
Control/Annual Governance Statement and recommend its adoption.  
 
e) To consider the arrangements for corporate governance and to agree 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice.  
 
f) To consider the Council’s compliance with its own and published standards 
and controls.  
 
5.3.Accounts  
 
a) To review and approve the annual statement of accounts.  
 
b) Specifically to consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been 
followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial statements 
or from the external audit that need to be brought to the attention of the 
Council.  
 

Page 16



c) To consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with the 
governance, issues arising from the audit of the accounts.  
 
d) To support the maintenance of effective arrangements for financial 
reporting and review the statutory statements of account and any reports that 
accompany them.  
 
 
5.4.Risk Management  
 
a) To consider the effectiveness of the authority’s risk management 

arrangements - understanding the risk profile of the organisation and 
seeking assurances that active arrangements are in place on risk-related 
issues, for both the Council and its collaborative arrangements 

. To consider the effectiveness of the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  
 
b) To review regular reports from the Corporate Risk Management on the 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register to gain assurance that the Council is 
monitoring and managing its risks effectively.  
 
c) To be satisfied that the authority’s accountability statements, including the 
annual governance statement, properly reflect the risk environment, and any 
actions required to improve it, and demonstrate how governance supports the 
achievement of the authority’s objectives.  
To be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements, including the Annual 
Governance Statement properly reflect the risk environment and any actions 
required to improve it.  
 
d) To review and approve the Council’s Strategic Risk Register annually. 
d) To monitor the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including 
arrangements for financial management, ensuring value for money, 
supporting standards and ethics and managing the authority’s exposure to the 
risks of fraud and corruption.  
 
e) To review and approve the Council’s Risk Management Strategy and 
Policy. 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B - Table of changes 

 

Section Change Reason 
5.1  Renumbering and formatting to reflect 

insertions and deletions. 
 

Formatting 

5.1 e) Removed  This has been removed at e) and consolidated with m). 
 

5.1 m) Revision of wording This wording has been updated to incorporate e) and reflect 
the CIFPA Position Statement 2022.  
 

5.1 n) – q)  Insertion of wording  
 

This has been incorporated to reflect the CIFPA Position 
Statement 2022. 
 

5.1 r) Insertion of wording This reflects the decision of the Executive on 12 October 
2023, item 14 - page 209 at (Public Pack)Agenda Document 
for Executive, 12/10/2023 10:00 (moderngov.co.uk) 
 

5.2 c) Revision of wording  
 

This is amended to reflect the local arrangements of North 
Northamptonshire Council.  
 

5.2 d)  Revision of wording This amendment is in line with CIFPA Position Statement 
2022 and local arrangements. 
 

5.3 a) 
 

Insertion of wording  This addition is to reflect the CIFPA Position Statement 2022 
and reflect the local arrangements.  
 

5.3 b)  Revision of wording  This has been updated to provide clarity. For information the 
appointment of the external auditor remains a function of the 
Council.  

P
age 19

A
ppendix B

https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g1541/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Executive.pdf?T=10
https://northnorthants.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g1541/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Oct-2023%2010.00%20Executive.pdf?T=10


5.3 d) Insertion of wording 
 

This is in line with the CIPFA Position Statement 2022.  

 
5.4 a) Revision of wording This amendment is in line with CIFPA Position Statement 

2022.  

 
5.4 b) Revision of wording 

 
This is a revision to the terminology to reflect the Council 
arrangements. 

 
5.4 c) 
 

Revision of wording From CIPFA Position Statement 2022. 

5.4 d)  
 
 

Insertion of wording This is updated to reflect the amendment proposed at 5.4 b). 
The Committee should be monitoring and the wording 
proposed is from CIPFA Position Statement 2022.  

 
5.4 e) Revision of wording This is consistent with the CIPFA Position Statement 2022, 

the Committee should be reviewing and approving the 
Council's Risk Management Strategy. The power to approve 
existed in d) above, however the terminology required 
revision to reflect the arrangements of the Council. 
 

 

 

 

P
age 20



                                    
 
 
 
 

Full Council  
25 January 2024 

 

 

 
List of Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Local Government Association -“Debate Not Hate: The Impact of 

Abuse on Local Democracy” report (the Report). 
 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. To update and inform Council of the Local Government Association’s “Debate 

Not Hate: The Impact of Abuse on Local Democracy” report (the Report) and 
campaign.  

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
2.1 In 2021, the Local Government Association (LGA) launched a “Call for Evidence 

on Abuse and Intimidation of Councillors” as part of the civility in public life 
programme. The findings from the report were used to produce a report and a 
campaign calling for support from Councillors, MPs, and Organisations to sign 
the public statement to show support for the Debate Not Hate Campaign.  

2.2 In conjunction with the report, the LGA have also produced a “Debate Not Hate” 
Public Statement which supports their campaign. The LGA are calling for 
Councillors, MPs, and Organisations to sign the Public Statement to show 
support for the Debate Not Hate Campaign. 

Report Title 
 

Local Government Association – Civility in public life - 
Debate Not Hate Campaign 
 

Report Author Adele Wylie – Executive Director of Customer and 
Governance   
adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk  
 
Kamila Coulson-Patel – Chief Lawyer  
Kamila.coulson-patel@northnorthants.gov.uk  

Are there public sector equality duty implications?  ☐ Yes    ☒ No 
Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)? 

☐ Yes    ☒ No 

Applicable paragraph number/s for exemption from 
publication under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

N/A 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

mailto:adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Kamila.coulson-patel@northnorthants.gov.uk


2.3 This report summarises the findings of the call for evidence, the LGA 
recommendations and the arrangements at North Northamptonshire Council.  
 

3. Recommendations 
 
3.1.1 It is recommended that: 

 
3.1.1.1 The Council commits to and accepts the following:  

 
a) To support the ‘Debate not Hate’ campaign and accept the LGA 

recommendations in principal. 
b) To work together, across the political groups to promote and uphold 

high standards of civil behaviour in public and political debate. 
c) To establish a reporting mechanism to record and monitor incidents of 

harassment and abuse. 
d) To work with officers to ensure that support is provide to councillors 

who are experiencing intimidation and abuse. 
e) That the Democracy and Standards Committee will review this on an 

annual basis and will work with the Monitoring Officer to address and 
challenge ongoing issues and key concerns.  
 

3.1.1.2 The Leader of the Council signs the Debate Not Hate Public Statement on 
behalf of the Council. 

 
3.2 Reasons for recommendations - The ‘Debate not Hate’ campaign aims to raise 

public awareness of the role of councillors in local communities, encourage 
healthy debate and improve the response to and support those in public life 
facing abuse and intimidation.  
 

3.2.1 Other options considered – To do nothing, however providing support to the 
campaign promotes high ethical standards in public life which is consistent 
with the Nolan principles and the Councillor Code of Conduct in accordance 
with the Localism Act 2011.  

 
 
4. Report Background 
 
4.1 In October 2021, the LGA launched its survey ‘The LGA’s Call for Evidence on 

Abuse and Intimidation of Councillors.’ The survey aimed to gather data of 
participants’ experiences and concerns regarding public abuse and intimidation.  
 

4.2 The survey was open to all Councillors in the UK both past and serving, to 
current and previous candidates from previous elections, those who assist or 
have assisted councillors, or those who have personally witnessed abuse 
towards councillors. 
 

4.3 The LGA received 419 responses within the first six months of the call for 
evidence, which were used to inform the Report. 

 
 

Page 22



5. Findings, Themes and Recommendations 
 

5.1 The key findings from the call for evidence were used to produce the “Debate 
Not Hate: The Impact of Abuse on Local Democracy” Report which is shown at 
Appendix A of this report. A summary of the key findings are: 
 
i. 88% respondents have experienced abuse directed at them with 98% of 

these councillors having experienced it on multiple occasions.  
ii. 73% report experiencing abuse via social media with it being the most 

common way abuse is received.  
iii. 64% have experienced in person abuse.  
iv. 59% believe abuse was triggered by a particular event, with 68% of 

these believing it was a particular decision which triggered the abuse. 
v. 50% reported that the abuse they receive is ongoing.  
vi. It was reported that those experiencing abuse viewed the political parties 

providing the least effective support to help councillors deal with abuse. 
vii. 72% of respondents take proactive steps to avoid intimidation and 

abuse.  
 
5.2 The report identifies five themes as follows: 

i. Variability - Support from Councils, Political Parties and the Police varied 
throughout the country.  

ii. Targeted Abuse - Councillors and candidates with protected 
characteristics more at risk of abuse with misogyny, racism and 
homophobia highlighted within the responses.  

iii.  Personal and Democratic impacts - Abuse and intimidation can have an 
impact on councillors and their families. Many respondents highlighted 
the impact of such incidents on their mental health. Respondents have 
reported that such incidents also have an impact on their willingness to 
stand for reflection.  

iv. Vulnerability of councillors – Councillors are vulnerable to physical 
abuse and intimidation due to them being visible and accessible in the 
local community. Similarly, factors such as their home addresses being 
available online increases their risk of receiving abuse.  

v. Normalisation – The attitude that abuse, particularly online abuse should 
be something that Councillors should be expected to deal with is 
becoming more common.  

 
5.3 Arising from the report there a series of recommendations were produced by 

the LGA as detailed below.  
 

5.4 Recommendation 1  
Councils and relevant partners should take more responsibility to ensure the 
safety and wellbeing of councillors. Proactive steps should be taken to prevent 
abuse and intimidation towards councillors and take similar steps to handling 
cases. Councils should work with agencies to support councillors’ mental health 
and address risks and threats directed at councillors. 
 

5.5 Recommendation 2 
LGA should continue to consider what measures can be put in place to prevent 
abuse and intimidation through the civility in public life programme.  

Page 23



 
5.6 Recommendation 3 

Police forces should be more consistent in their response to abuse and threats 
towards councillors. Risk based approaches should be taken in a similar way 
which they are for MPs. Similar procedures should be implemented nationally.  
 

5.7 Recommendation 4  
Legislation should be passed to entitle councillors to withhold their home 
address.  
 

5.8 Recommendation 5 
LGA should work with parties, election and democratic officers and 
organisations responsible for guidance to promote practice of withholding home 
addresses.  
 

5.9 Recommendation 6  
Social media companies should provide better methods to deal with abuse 
reported by councillors.  
 

5.10 Recommendation 7  
In partnership with LGA a working group should be formed by the relevant 
Government department to address issues around abuse and intimidation of 
councillors.  
 

5.11 The Democracy and Standards Committee considered and gave its support to 
the Debate Not Hate campaign at its meeting held on 8 January 2024. Members 
of the Committee considered this to be a very important campaign, emphasing 
the opportunities to improve the public perception of councillors in terms of their 
working in the best interests of constituents.  
 

5.12 It was also noted that in some cases behaviour at council meetings could be 
poor at times as a consequence of passionate debate, and that support to the 
campaign could also improve matters in this regard. Issues of reinforcing the 
personal safety of councillors were also raised, noting high profile incidents in 
recent years.   
 
 

6. Issues and Choices 
 

6.1 The Council and its officers understand the significance and impact of incidents 
of abuse and intimidation towards Councillors. The intimidation and abuse of 
councillors, in person or otherwise, undermines democracy; it can prevent 
elected members from representing the communities they serve, prevent 
individuals from standing for election and undermine public trust in democratic 
processes. These harmful behaviours, whether occurring towards, between or 
by elected members are entirely unacceptable.  
 

6.2 The Monitoring Officer has identified the need to further enhance the existing 
arrangements to support Councillors and promote high ethical standards. This 
includes updating advice and guidance for Councillors on the topic of personal 
security and the development of a Councillor social media toolkit. The work to 

Page 24



be undertaken has commenced locally working with Health and Safety and 
Communication teams.  
 

6.3 To ensure improved awareness and engagement it is proposed that the 
Monitoring Officer presents the local campaign proposals to Committee prior to 
roll out across the Council.   
 

6.4 In relation to recommendation seven, the LGA are asking all Councillors and 
MPs across the country to sign a public statement to support their work and act 
as a call for action for the relevant government department to form a working 
group to bring together relevant agencies and partners to produce an action 
plan.  

 
6.5 Given the LGA’s findings in relation to abuse and intimidation, it is important to 

raise awareness of the support available to Councillors and to promote the 
Debate not Hate Campaign. 

 
 
7. Next Steps  

 
7.1 Council is recommended to support the LGA campaign as set out at paragraph 

3.1.2, if agreed the Leader will sign the Public Statement and the Democracy 
and Standards Committee will receive updates from the Monitoring Officer on 
developments and work to be undertaken to the campaign.  
 
 

8. Implications (including financial implications) 
 

8.1 Resources and Financial 
 

8.1.1 There are no direct resource or financial implications arising from the support 
and signing to the campaign. There will be limited financial and resource 
implications in a campaign for the Council through the work undertaken by its 
officers. It is not anticipated that there will be any external expenditure 
associated with a campaign.  

 
8.2 Legal and Governance 

 
8.2.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. The issues 

referred to in this report will assist the Council in complying with its obligations 
under section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct. 

 
8.3 Risk  

 
8.3.1 There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in 

this report. 
 
  

Page 25



8.4 Consultation 
 

8.4.1 The Democracy and Standards Committee considered this report on 8th 
January 2024 and supported the recommendation to Council. 
 

8.5 Consideration by Executive Advisory Panel 
 

8.5.1 This has not been considered by an Executive Advisory Panel.  
 

8.6 Consideration by Scrutiny 
 

8.6.1 This has not been considered by Scrutiny.  
 
8.7 Climate Impact 

 
8.7.1 Not considered applicable.  

 
8.8 Community Impact 

 
8.8.1 Not considered applicable.  

 
 
9. Background Papers 
 
9.1 None 

Page 26



Page 27

Appendix A



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



 

Full Council 
 25th January 2024 

 
Report Title 
 

Request for Dispensation for Attendance  
 

Report Author Adele Wylie, Executive Director of Customer & 
Governance (Monitoring Officer)  

Adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk  

Sanjit Sull, Assistant Director Legal and Democratic 
Services  

Sanjit.sull@northnorthants.gov.uk 

 
 
Question Answer 

Are there public sector equality duty implications?  ☐ Yes    X No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information 
(whether in appendices or not)? 

☐ Yes    X No 

Applicable paragraph number/s for exemption from 
publication under Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

N/A 

 
 
List of Appendices 
 
None 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1. To advise Councillors of a request for a dispensation to a Councillor who is 

currently unable to attend any Council meetings due to illness, and to ask 
them to endorse the request.  

 
2. Executive Summary 
 
1.1. Where Councillor fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the 

date of their last attendance to attend any meeting of the Council, then subject 
to certain exceptions, he/she ceases to become a Member of the Council 
unless the failure was due to some reason approved before the expiry of that 
period. Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Adele.wylie@northnorthants.gov.uk
mailto:Sanjit.sull@northnorthants.gov.uk


1.2. Council has the authority to grant a dispensation for attendance at Council 
meetings for Councillors in circumstances when it is likely that the Councillor 
may be absent for six consecutive months from the date of the last attendance 
pursuant to Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
3. Recommendations 
 

1.3. It is recommended that full Council 

a) Grants a dispensation be granted for Councillor Christina Smith Haynes 
from attending meetings of the Council for a six-month period by reason 
of illness. 

 
1.4. Reason for Recommendations – Pursuant to Section 85 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 where a Councillor fails to attend any meeting of the 
Council for six months, they cease to be a Member of the Council unless a 
dispensation has been granted by the Council. 

 
 

1.5. Other Options Considered – Council could not approve the dispensation. 
This is not recommended as the reasons for it are considered reasonable 
and failure to grant would result in Councillor Christina Smith Haynes 
ceasing to be a member of North Northamptonshire Council.  

 

4. Report Background 
 

1.6. Pursuant to Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 where a 
Councillor fails throughout a period of six consecutive months from the date 
of their last attendance to attend any meeting of the Council, then subject to 
certain exceptions, s/he ceases to become a Member of the Council unless 
the failure was due to some reason approved before the expiry of that 
period. 

1.7. Council has the authority to grant a dispensation for attendance at Council 
meetings for Councillors if it is likely that the Councillor may be absent for six 
consecutive months from the date of their last attendance.  

 
1.8. Councillor Christina Smith Haynes’s most recent attendance at a Committee 

of the Council was at the EAP Active Communities on 4th August 2023. She 
has given apologies for all meetings at which she was expected since this 
date due to illness.  

 
1.9. Councillor Christina Smith Haynes has also been unable to undertake ward 

business during this period, these have been covered by her fellow Burton 
and Broughton ward councillors, Councillor John Currall and Councillor Jan 
O'Hara 

 

Page 66



1.10. A dispensation will allow Councillor Christina Smith Haynes to attend 
Committees of the Council if she is able, and for her apologies to be given if 
she is not.  

 
1.11. The circumstances given are considered sufficient to merit the grant of a 

dispensation from attendance. 
 
 

5. Issues and Choices 
 
1.12. The Council could decide not to grant the dispensation. However, to do so 

could result in Councillor Christina Smith Haynes’s ceasing to be a member of 
North Northamptonshire Council.  

 
1.13. The dispensation is a decision for full Council and is made pursuant to Section 

85 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 
6. Next Steps 

 
1.14. If approved the dispensation will be recorded for a period of six months from 

the date of the decision.  
 

7. Implications (including financial implications) 
 
1.15. Resources and Financial 

1.15.1. There are no resources or financial implications arising from the proposals. 
 
1.16. Legal and Governance 

 
1.16.1. Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that where a Councillor 

fails to attend any meeting of the Council for six months, they cease to be a 
Member of the Authority unless a dispensation has been granted by the 
Authority concerned. The dispensation must be given before the expiry of 
the six-month period. In Councillor Christina Smith Haynes’s case, this is 3 
February 2024  

 
1.17. Relevant Policies and Plans 

 
1.17.1. Granting the dispensation will support delivery of the Council’s Corporate 

Plan 2021 – 2025, the continued transformation agenda and other key 
strategies and plans that deliver the best outcomes for our residents.  

 

Page 67



 

1.18. Risk  
 

1.18.1.  There are no significant risks arising from the proposed recommendations in 
this report. 

 
1.19. Consultation  

 
1.19.1. None required, the exemption complies with a statutory process.  

 
1.20. Equality Implications 

 
1.20.1. There are no specific equality implications arising from this report.  
 
1.21. Climate Impact 

 
1.21.1. There are no specific climate impacts arising from this report. 

 
1.22. Community Impact 

 
1.22.1. There are no specific community impacts arising from this report.  
 
1.23. Crime and Disorder Impact 
 
1.23.1. There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report.  

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 

1.24. None.  

Page 68


	Agenda
	3 Monitoring Officer Designation - Interim appointment and Interim arrangements to cover Executive Director of Customer and Governance Duties
	4 Proposed Revisions to the Constitution - Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference
	7.	Background Papers
	Appendix A - ToR Updates 08.01.2024
	Appendix B - Table of changes 08.01.2024

	5 Local Government Association - Civility in public life - Debate Not Hate Campaign
	Appendix A - LGA report

	6 Request for Dispensation for Attendance
	Full Council
	1.	Purpose of Report
	2.	Executive Summary
	3.	Recommendations
	4.	Report Background
	5.	Issues and Choices
	6.	Next Steps
	7.	Implications (including financial implications)
	8.	Background Papers



